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IDENTIFICATION 

Property Name (if any): John H. and Margaret Rogers House       

Address: 455 Park Avenue            

Date of Construction: c. 1881      City, County: Park City, Summit County, Utah  

Architect/Builder, if known: unknown     Tax Number: PC-59      

Current Owner: Michael C. Phillips  

Legal Description (include acreage): ALL LOTS 14 & 15 BLK 4 PARK CITY SURVEY CONT .09 AC QWD-458 

TWD-324 M54-262 M79-543 406-604 1937-325 

 

STATUS / USE 

Original Use: single dwelling Current Use: single dwelling   

Property Type:   National Register of Historic Places:  Evaluation:   

 Building    Eligible      Landmark Site 

 Structure    Ineligible      Significant Site                 

  Site     Listed, Date:     Non Historic   

          04/14/1988 - Mining Boom Era Residences Thematic District 

DOCUMENTATION 

Photographs:   Research Sources: 

 Tax Photos    Sanborn Maps  City/ County Histories  Newspapers  

 Prints:    tax Card   Personal Interviews   Other: 

 Historic    Census Records  Park City Museum 
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DESCRIPTION 

Architectural Style: T cottage type          

No. Stories: 2.5     

Number of Associated Structures:   Accessory building(s). #   Structure(s). #  

Condition:   Good   Fair    Poor   Uninhabitable/Ruin 

Location:  Original location  Moved (Date: ,original location:  ) 

Materials: (Describe the visible materials)  

Exterior Walls: Drop siding     

Foundation: Stone      

Roof: Cross-wing roof form sheathed in standing seam metal material       

Windows/Doors: Paired and single double-hung sash type     

Additions:     Major   Minor   None 

Alterations:   Major   Minor   None      

Describe Additions/ Alterations (Dates):   

 

Essential Historic Form:  Retains       Does Not Retain 

 

NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY 

(Briefly describe the property and its setting. Include a verbal description of the location; a general description of 

the property including the overall shape, number of stories, architectural style, materials, shape of roof; identify and 

describe any associated structures; identify any known exterior additions and/or alterations.) 

 

455 Park Avenue was described extensively in a 1988 National Register nomination form as follows: 

 

“The Rogers House is a 2-1/2-story stone and frame house that was constructed in three major sections. The 

original house, the T-cottage frame section that now serves as the second story, was built c. 1881. That section 

was raised up and an above-ground stone “basement” was constructed beneath it in 1887. The pyramid-roofed 

“third-story” section at the rear was probably added in 1892. The most substantial alteration to the exterior is the 

addition of a full-width, two-story, wrap-around front porch, which was probably built in the early 1940s. Other 

alterations include the replacement of an original double-hung window with a picture window in the stem of the 

second-story cross-wing (post-1940s) and the addition of a large brick and stone chimney on the north side of the 

house (date unknown). Despite these alterations, the house retains a substantial degree of its integrity on the 
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exterior, documenting through its numerous historic changes the local trend of expanding existing houses rather 

than constructing new ones.  

 

The original c. 1881 section of the house is a small cross-wing house - a T-cottage - with a gable roof and drop 

siding on its exterior walls. The façade fenestration consists of two double-hung windows in the crosswing and a 

door flanked by a window in the stemwing. The window in the stemwing has been enlarged and now wraps around 

the corner (post--1940s). There is a gable-roof dormer centered on the roof over the front door, providing light to 

the pyramid-roofed upper story that was added c. 1892.  

 

The stone “basement,” added in 1887, is entirely above grade on the facade, but, because of the slope of the land, 

is below grade toward the rear. Its façade consists of a center door flanked by a pair of double-hung windows on 

one side and a single double-hung window on the other side. The c. 1892 addition is a two-story frame section that 

was added to the rear of the house, overlapping a portion of the original house (see attached Sanborn map 

tracings). It has drop siding on the exterior walls and a pyramidal roof covered with standing-seam metal roofing.  

 

The large front porch, as mentioned previously, was probably constructed in the 1940s. It does not show up on the 

1940 Sanborn map, but it is visible in a c. 1940s tax photograph (see attached photo). The balustrade on the 

second story of the porch is a later addition, replacing a wire fence balustrade that is visible in the old tax 

photograph.” 

 

Though the house described still stands today, a large addition has been built to the rear of the house. The addition 

is clad in a modern wood siding. The addition has a standing seam metal roof. Several concrete retaining walls 

have been built on the site as well. While the form of the historic house remains, the overall changes to that form, 

including the rear addition, diminish the historic value of the house. 

 

SIGNIFICANCE 

Historic Era: 

 Settlement & Mining Boom Era (1868-1893) 

 Mature Mining Era (1894-1930) 

 Mining Decline & Emergence of Recreation Industry (1931-1962) 

 

Narrative Statement of Significance: 

(Briefly describe those characteristics by which this property may be considered historically significant.)  

The history of this house was detailed in a 198 National Register nomination form as follows: 

 

“Constructed c. 1881 and expanded in 1887 and c. 1892, the John H. and Margaretta Rogers House is significant 

as an example of the residential architecture of Park City, the largest metal mining town in Utah. The Rogers House 

is associated with the historic themes of mining and architecture, as documented in the 1984 thematic nomination, 

“Residences of Mining-Boom Era Park City.” Over 100 houses in Park City were documented in the initial thematic 
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study, though this house was excluded at that time because of its alterations. Since then, however, additional 

research has revealed that most of the major changes to this house were made within the historic period. The 

alterations on this house document a significant characteristic of Park City housing--that existing houses, no matter 

their size or substantiality, were retained and expanded rather than torn down to make way for newer, larger 

houses. 

 

The exact date of construction of the Rogers House is not known, though it is likely that the original T--cottage 

section was built c. 1881, soon after John H. Rogers purchased the property. John H. Rogers was a wholesale and 

retail dealer in groceries, clothing, boots, shoes, miners supplies, and so forth. He was also involved in various 

mining ventures. Around 1884 he married Margaretta Valaria, a 21 year--old native of Indiana who had come to 

Park City that year. 

The first known alterations were made to the house in 1884, possibly as an attempt by John to upgrade the house 

for his new bride. In May 1884, the local newspaper, the Park Record, note that "J.H. Rogers is making some good 

improvements on his residence on Park Avenue." It is unknown what those improvements were. 

The next newspaper reference to changes being made to the Rogers House was more specific. In September 

1887 the paper stated that "John H. Rogers is having his house on Park avenue raised and a substantial basement 

built thereunder." Many of the frame houses in Park City were initially constructed without foundations, so a 

common improvement was to raise them up and lay a stone foundation, apparently to provide greater stability and 

prevent deterioration. The stone basement constructed under the Rogers house is one of the most substantial in 

the town, with a full story above grade on the facade. 

A final newspaper reference to this house is made on October 29, 1892: “J.H. Rogers has been building a fine 

stone retaining wall in front of his residence and making other improvements to beautify his home.” Again, it is 

unclear what those “other” improvements were, though it is possible that the two-story section on the rear was 

added at that time. Photographs from about 1900 show that that section of the house was in place by then. The 

stone retaining wall that was built in 1892 has been subsequently replaced with one of concrete. 

After John H. Rogers' death in 1895, Margaretta continued to live in the house for only a couple more years before 

moving to Salt Lake City. She took over her husband's mining interests and became president of the Blue Ridge 

Mining Company. The location of her Salt Lake City home on South Temple, the city's most prestigious residential 

street, indicates that her mining interests were successful. She appears to have retained ownership of this house 

through 1930, apparently renting it out during those years.” 

 

During the 1920 census, the house was occupied by Frank Hansen. It is believed that this is Frank Hansen Sr. who 

was one of the pioneers of Park City. He helped in building the Transcontinental Railroad, and was present when 

the golden spike was driven that completed that railroad. He was also the original locator of the Queen Esther 

mining ground in Deer Valley. At the time of the census, he was 72 and not working. He died in 1925. 

 

During the 1930 census the house was rented by three different families, though it is unknown if the house was 

divided in any way at that time. Edward and Vernie Roberts, and four of Vernie’s children from a previous marriage. 

Edward worked as a miner and so did one of his stepsons. Another family was Nathan and Isabelle Kerr, and their 

six children. Edward was also a miner. The final family was Wren and Orlean Roundy, and their three sons. Wren 

also worked as a miner. 
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Jacob and Josephine Olsen owned and occupied the house during the 1940 census. They gained ownership of the 

property in 1932. Jacob is listed as a miner at that time, and was a shift boss for many years at the Daly Judge 

mine according to other records. At that time they had one son named Maurice, and retained possession of the 

house until 1948. The house is currently owned by Michael C. Phillips. 
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PHOTOS 

(Provide several clear historical and current photos of the property as well as locational maps indicating the 

location of the property in relation to streets or other widely recognized features.) 
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John and Margaretta Rogers House 

455 Park Avenue, Park City, Summit County, Utah 

Photo by Matthew Snyder 

December 1987 

Negative: Utah State Historical Society 

Photo 1/3 
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455 Park Avenue. Northeast oblique. November 2013. 

 
455 Park Avenue. East elevation. November 2013. 
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455 Park Avenue. Southeast oblique. November 2013. 
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